
FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA -- 8/13/2024 at 3:30 PM 
19406 Loud Thunder Rd, Illinois City, IL – Loud Thunder Park Office 

I. Roll Call:

II. Old Business:  Executive Committee minutes from July 9, 2024* pg 2

III. Claims:* FY24:
Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $50,301.03 pg  19Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $23,719.79 pg 6 

Treasurer’s Disbursements $27,748.64 pg 36
FY25:

Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $54,121.60 pg 6 
Liability Fund claims @ $43.50 pg 35

Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $70,104.60 pg 19 
Treasurer’s Disbursements $250,623.07 pg 37

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $476,662.23 

IV. Transfers:
Consider FY 24 Transfers of Appropriations* pg 38
Consider FY 25 Transfers of Appropriations* pg 40

V. Resolutions:
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations* pg 41
Consider a resolution regarding FY 25 Niabi Zoo Improvements ARPA Grant Appropriations* pg 42
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Niabi Zoo Appropriation – Zoo Foundation Donation for the Shipping Costs* pg 43
Consider a resolution regarding Niabi Zoo Receipt of Grants Funds – Woodward Community Grant Fund* pg 44
Consider a resolution regarding DF&CI Fund Loan from FP General Fund* pg 45

VI. Ordinances:
There are no ordinances to consider this month

VII. Public comment:

VIII. Other Business:
Consider the purchase of a Wiedenmann Terra Spike GX18 (aerator) in the amount of $42,500* pg 46
Consideration and approval of Quad Cities Power Station Real Property Tax Assessment Settlement Agreement, subject to
final revision and approval by counsel* pg 50
Other business as needed

IX. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports: 
District Budget Performance Report* pg 100 
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports* pg 131 
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report* pg 144
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report* pg 148

Nick Camlin – Treasurer’s Report* pg 126
Todd Collins pg 141 & Jay Verstraete – Indian Bluff Reports* 
Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report* pg 145
Jeff Craver – Director’s report* pg 159

The Forest Preserve Executive Committee may enter a Closed Session for the following: 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) – The appointment employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or 
legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for 
the public body to determine its validity.  
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning 
salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)-Discussion of the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of 
discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (11)-Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or 
administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and 
entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 
* items are in members’ packets

The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee will be held at Illiniwek Forest Preserve Park Office, 836 
State Ave, Hampton, Illinois on Tuesday, September 10, 2024 at 3:30 PM. 

001



July 9, 2024 Page 1 

FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
JULY 9, 2024 

 
                  
PRESENT: Committee members –L. Moreno, E. Sowards, R. Simmer, D. Mielke, J. Woods. 
 
ABSENT: K. Swanson, C. Layer. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Jeff Craver, District Director; Todd Collins, Clubhouse Manager; April Palmer, 
Auditor; Jay Verstraete, Golf Course Superintendent. 
 
Dr. Moreno called the monthly meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee to order at 
3:28 PM on Tuesday, July 9, 2024, in the Clubhouse at Indian Bluff Golf Course in Milan, Illinois. 
 
L. Moreno, R. Simmer, D. Mielke, E. Sowards, J. Woods. 
TOTAL PRESENT 5 
K. Swanson, C. Layer. 
TOTAL ABSENT 2 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion approving the June Committee meeting and the closed session 
minutes. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the June Committee meeting and the closed session 
minutes. Ms. Woods seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in the 
amount of $1,044,949.30. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Woods moved to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in the amount 
of $1,044,949.30. Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the transfers of appropriation. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the transfers of appropriation. Ms. Woods seconded the 
motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the resolutions regarding FY24 General Fund 
Appropriation Amendment, FY24 Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations, FY24 Niabi Zoo 
Prairie Dog & ARPA Grant Appropriations, FY24 Niabi Zoo Improvements ARPA Grant 

002



July 9, 2024 Page 2 

Appropriations, Receipt of Grant Funds-Woodard Community Grant Fund (WCGF23), Receipt of 
Grant Funds-Woodard Community Grant Fund (WCGF24), Receipt of Grant Funds-Hubbell-
Waterman Foundation Grant, Niabi Zoo Fund Appropriations-Zoo Foundation Donation for the 
Purchase of Signage, Niabi Zoo Fund Appropriations-Zoo Foundation for the Classroom Door & 
Improvements, and Semi-Annual Review of closed session minutes. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Woods moved to approve the resolutions regarding FY24 General Fund 
Appropriation Amendment, FY24 Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations, FY24 Niabi Zoo 
Prairie Dog & ARPA Grant Appropriations, FY24 Niabi Zoo Improvements ARPA Grant 
Appropriations, Receipt of Grant Funds-Woodard Community Grant Fund (WCGF23), Receipt of 
Grant Funds-Woodard Community Grant Fund (WCGF24), Receipt of Grant Funds-Hubbell-
Waterman Foundation Grant, Niabi Zoo Fund Appropriations-Zoo Foundation Donation for the 
Purchase of Signage, Niabi Zoo Fund Appropriations-Zoo Foundation for the Classroom Door & 
Improvements, and Semi-Annual Review of closed session minutes. Mr. Mielke seconded the 
motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno made three calls for public comment. There were no requests for public comment. 
 
Dr. Moreno called on Mr. Craver for an update on the funding for storm damage at Niabi Zoo. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that last month a breakdown of projects remaining was provided. There is an 
estimated $2,483,388.00 of snow damage repairs identified. The District has not yet put out bids 
on the biodiversity fencing repair, the carousal top and cover, the red wolf retaining wall and 
pathway, and perimeter fence. Regarding the perimeter fence. Mr. Jackson estimates that there 
is around 1,000 linear feet of fencing that needs to be repaired, but the insurance is saying that 
it’s only 160 feet. Then below you can see the Pallas Cat exhibit. It was not up to modern zoo 
standards, therefore fixing to its original state was not deemed in the District’s best interest. 
Those will need community support or District support elsewhere at another time. The District 
adopted a lot of this work, and our hand was kind of forced when we initially asked for the ARPA 
funds. It was to cover the cost overages from the painted dogs, the prairie dogs and with the 
remaining funds upgrade the cat house exhibits. Staff was estimating based on preliminary 
estimated that would get maybe two of those exhibits done. Unfortunately, the storm damage 
came, and Niabi lost all four when they collapsed. That put the District in the situation of only 
having enough to do two of the upgrades plus the upgrade for the Eagle exhibit, which lead to the 
question of what was the best way to handle things. In discussions with President Swanson, it 
was determined to see what the insurance paid out, and in the meantime push ahead. The 
insurance adjustment was a little disappointing. Currently the insurance has noted $208,000.00 
that is on the sheet that was handed out. Received another revised estimate today that was 
around $246,000.00. 
 
Dr. Simmer asked if there was a possibility that staff could go back to the insurance company and 
get more due to the structures not being up to code. 
 

003



July 9, 2024 Page 3 

Mr. Craver that while the exhibits were not up to the modern zoo exhibit standards, the exhibits 
were up to the building code standards. Obviously, the projects went significantly over what was 
put on the application for the ARPA funds. Several months ago I looked into bonds, which that 
information is in the packet. Staff does not recommend doing bonds at this time for this situation. 
The board has approved $2,000,000.00 worth of projects through Estes, and the zoo is short on 
cash. The recommendation right now is to do a Tax Anticipation Warrant for Niabi, and small 
increase in levy. Have asked the Treasurer to be prepared to put out an RFP for Tax Anticipation 
Warrant(TAW). There isn’t enough money in the General Fund to temporarily loan the zoo what it 
needs to get through. Can’t give an exact amount for those at time, but once those numbers are 
known, they will be passed on to the Board. More ARPA funds have been requested, but have 
not heard back. The TAW should go out in the fall. Unless the Board is really excited to go out for 
more debt, staff is recommending TAW and a levy increase in order to repay the TAW. 
 
Mr. Mielke asked if staff was recommending an increase that would require a referendum. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that the recommended increase would not be that high. It would only require a 
Truth in Taxation Public Hearing. For a $200,000.00 house it would raise a tax bill between $10 - 
$12 for the year. The zoo will still have a bit of a cash crunch, but this should help get them 
through. Some projects will likely still need to be put off until the zoo has the opportunity to 
recover a bit. If the District puts off about $400,000.00 worth of work, that still leaves around $1.6 
million. The DFCI fund could be used for some of the repairs and upgrades, but it’s important to 
remember that the other preserves have projects needing to be done as well. Potentially the 
General Fund could loan the zoo, but definitely not all the remainder. So maybe that means that 
the amount drops down to $1,000,000.00. Then with the TAW the zoo can bridge the deficit and 
get the bills paid. Hopefully, some of the fiscal year 2025 funds can be used to address some of 
the smaller items.  
 
Dr. Moreno asked what the proposed percentage increase is, and what the maximum that can be 
levied. It would be better to levy what the zoo needs, then lower the levy back down. 
 
After a brief discussion using the handout as a visual aid, Mr. Craver was directed to get more 
detailed information on options for levy increases to get the necessary repairs and upgrades 
done. 
 
Dr. Moreno called on Mr. Craver to speak on the land donation. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that someone recently reached out to the District regarding one of the lots 
down at Doyle’s addition. The District already maintains several of those lots. Those lots are 
actually County through the flood plain, which the District has a lease agreement for. 
 
Dr. Moreno asked if there were any negatives to accepting the donation. 
 
Mr. Craver answered that there were no negatives to taking the small plot of land. 
 

004



July 9, 2024 Page 4 

Dr. Moreno asked if the Committee had any questions regarding the routine reports of the 
District. 
 
There were no questions. 
 
Dr. Moreno asked Mr. Verstraete if there was anything he would like to bring attention to in his 
report. 
 
Mr. Verstraete stated that the pond was not looking great, but staff is addressing that situation. 
 
Dr. Moreno asked Mr. Collins if there was anything he would like to bring attention to in his report. 
 
Mr. Collins stated that the numbers for this year have been very similar to last. 
 
Dr. Moreno called for a motion to approve the routine reports of the District. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approved the routine reports of the District. Dr. Moreno seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Moreno called the meeting adjourned at 4:07 PM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Cassie Sullivan 
Forest Preserve Administrative Assistant 

005



006



007



008



009



010



011



012



013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



Indian Bluff Clubhouse Report – August 2024 

 

July Sales Numbers:  2024   2023   2022 

Rounds played:   4770   4639   4486  

Golf Revenue’s:          $117,797          $112,269           $109,355 

Concession’s:            $31,078            $28,263          $30,340 

ProShop:               $5,261             $6,103            $4,997 

Improvement Fund:            $8,555.00         $6281.00       $6,146.00  

Total Revenue for July:       $154,137          $146,292        $144,693 

Avg $/Player              $32.26   $31.61              $32.20   
     

 

 Looking at the month of July the numbers will speak for themselves.  Overall things were 
very very good at the golf course.  Rounds played were up slightly from 2023.   Revenue overall 
also showed an increase over July 2023.  All revenue was up except for proshop in the month of 
July.  July had the biggest revenue take in my memory for any month, that includes a very 
strong July last season.   Overall the money spent per round showed a slight increase from last 
July.  Along with being the biggest month in my memory, we also had the biggest single day in 
my memory on Saturday July 20.  That day featured over 225 rounds played, 199 of them 18 
hole rounds, and did NOT feature a golf outing.   

 During the month of July, Indian Bluff hosted the Hackers and Slackers Golf Outing, 
Concession sales were very strong the outing.  The day actually featured our third biggest one 
day revenue take in my memory (losing out to Hackers and Slackers 2023, and July 20 this 
season).    Leagues remain if full swing for the month of July as well.  As we head for August the 
league schedule will remain full until September this year.   

 One incident in late July, it is believed the Clubhouse was hit by lightning early one 
morning.  It created a little bit of havoc for a couple days, but staff was able to quickly adapt, 
and IT had us up and running for the most part within a day or so.   Outside of that staff remains 
very busy with the day to day operations of the clubhouse and golf course.  

141



As the golf course heads to August we have a few outings on the schedule this month, 
and the weather appears to stay pretty steady the first couple weeks.  Leagues will mostly finish 
this month.  High school golf begins early in the month as well.  The prospects of Alleman 
actually having a golf team this season are unknown at this point.  I do anticipate they will be 
able to field a team with some other sports having already been cancelled.  The start to August 
has been a little bit down coming off a very strong July.   The weather looks fantastic, and we 
have a lot of outings thru the middle of the month.  The golf trend continues to point upwards, 
with more and more people coming out to play.  Currently 2024 numbers as a whole run a little 
bit ahead of 2023.  We will wait to see what the late summer and fall have in store for us.   

142



143



144



   
 
 
 

Report to Forest Preserve Committee 
 

  Name of Park __Loud Thunder __ 
 

  For the Month of _July 2024__ 
 

Grounds Maintenance performed--  

• Picked up trash on grounds, removed trash from trash receptacles 

• Cleaned pit toilets as needed  

• Cleaned burn rings  

• Cleared trees and storm damage on trails 

• Mowed all campgrounds and maintained areas 

• String trimmed preserve grounds 

• Sprayed herbicide on gravel camping pads and parking areas 

• Cleaned up storm damage to trees at Riverview campground 

• Performed brush removal on blind turns in Lone Cedar Shelter and Indian Meadow Campground 

Building Maintenance projects performed-- 

• Cleaned maintenance shop  

• Pressure washed boat rental building 

• Cleaned shelters and shower buildings weekly 

• Cleaned shower buildings daily  

• Replaced light bulbs as needed in maintenance shop 

Equipment repairs and/or project performed-- 

• Preformed pre and post operation checks daily on equipment to be used.   

• Had Martin John Deere of Aledo recalibrate pedals and cut height on JD 2032 tractor 

• Had Martin John Deere of Aledo fix the breaks on JD 5065 tractor 

• Pressure washed mowers weekly 

• Pressure washed and cleaned Gators daily after use 

Trails/Course/General facility conditions--The park as a whole is looking great. Trails were open to 

horses and bikes when conditions allowed, but we received a lot of rain so they were closed more than 

they were open the month of July.  Weeds are really taking off now so staff is working diligently to weed 

eat them and spray herbicide where needed.  

 

145



 

 

 

Vandalism report— I have no vandalism to report for the month of July 2024.  

Incidents--I have no incidents to report for the month of July 2024. 

Accidents reports--I have no accidents to report for the month of July 2024.  

Weather conditions—The month of July had a high wind event that caused major damage to trees on the 

assess ramp to and in the Riverview campground.  Along with the high wind events, we saw a few heavy 

rain events here at the preserve.   

 

Activities/Events/Outings held at park— We hosted a couple family events at the shelters during the 

month of July.      

   

July was a great month for revenue!  I have watched our patron’s average length of stay steadily 

growing over the years and this is great for Loud Thunder.  The flood conditions on the river forced 

several people to find alternate camping spots during the month of July and that really helped us to get 

exposure with a lot of folks who typically camp at other campgrounds.  When I was doing rounds and 

chatting with patrons on several weekends, many of them were giving really positive feedback and very 

complementary of the preserve.   

As I have previously stated in this report, we received several storm events at Loud Thunder 

during the month of July.  Some of these storms were accompanied by severe winds that caused a lot of 

damage to trees here on the preserve.  One of the storms in particular sheared trees off on the Riverview 

access ramp and in the campgrounds.  I brought in an arborist with a bucket truck to remove hazardous 

limbs from the affected trees in the campground.  I also had him remove several ash trees that died and 

were leaning toward power lines on the access road to the Riverview Campground.  Earlier this summer 

we lost power when one of these ash trees fell on the power wires and blocked the access ramp 

completely.  Fortunately, we did not have anyone camping at Riverview when that happened as trapping 

people down in an area can cause some serious anxiety and fear in folks.   

Lake George Boat Rental is changing hours now that the majority of my seasonal staff have 

started school.  I plan to sell all four of our large pontoons at the close of this season as the trolling motors 

that I have been using to power them are no longer being sold.  The average days that we are experiencing 

stronger winds seems to keep increasing, on these days, I do not allow the large pontoons to go out 

because the motors cannot generate enough thrust to safely propel the boats. These boats have been at the 

rental for ten years now and need some pretty major repairs if we were to keep them.  The party barges are 

and have been the main boat that staff have to rescue on a daily basis so taking them out of the rental will 

146



give us a safer smoother running boat rental moving forward.  I plan on purchasing six small pontoons to 

replace the boats that I am selling.  These six pontoons are constructed of 100% aluminum so the decking 

will not rot and they do not have carpet to get destroyed like the ones that I currently have at the rental.   

The pontoons that I plan to purchase are much lower profile so they do not catch as much wind as the 

pontoons that we are currently using at the boat rental.  The last weekend Lake George Boat Rental will 

operate this year will be Labor Day Weekend and I plan on selling the boats shortly thereafter.  

With the summer ending, staff will be transitioning to working on our trail maintenance and 

working with the Blackhawk Highway Construction Career Training crew to build a new bridge on the 

Sac Fox trail.  With this committee’s approval I will purchase the bridge from Rolling Barge for $29,429. 

I have attached the quote in my report and the bridge is 48’ long, 6’ wide, and rated to 9,000 lbs so 

equestrians and equipment can safely use the bridge. We will be addressing a couple of our creek 

crossings and widening out sections of trail where invasive plants are beginning to encroach.  Staff is 

looking forward to working in the timber so hopefully, the weather cooperates!  One final note, I have a 

young man who is working on building some fish structures for Lake George as his eagle scout project.  

David Wyffles with IDNR Fisheries is working on this as well and we are excited to put these structures in 

the lake as the biologists have recommended them in their last lake survey.  

.  

 

 

Ben Mills Superintendent 

Loud Thunder Forest Preserve, Ralph Martin Conservation Area  08//07/24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163


	2024 07-09 Committee minutes.pdf
	FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES
	JULY 9, 2024




